BY-LAWS for the QUAIL CREEK AT THE RIDGES HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE I Members (Unit Owners)

Section 1. Eligibility. The members of Quail Creek at The Ridges Homeowners' Association, Inc., a Tennessee nonprofit corporation (the "Association"), shall consist of the respective Unit Owners of Quail Creek At The Ridges (the "Property"). The words "member" or "members" as used in these Bylaws mean and shall refer to "Unit Owner" or "Unit Owners," as the case may be, as defined in The Restrictions, Easements, Covenants, Conditions, Assessments, and Liens for Quail Creek at The Ridges. If a Unit Owner is a land title holding trust under the terms of which all powers of management, operation and control of the Unit remain vested in the trust beneficiary, then the member shall be said beneficiary of such trust.

Section 2. Succession. The membership of each Unit Owner shall terminate when such Owner ceases to be a Unit Owner, and upon the sale, transfer or other disposition of such Owner's ownership interest in the Property, such Owner's membership in the Association shall automatically be transferred to the new Unit Owner succeeding to such ownership interest.

Section 3. Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of Unit Owners shall be held at the time and place specified in the notice of such meeting, but such place shall be within five (5) miles of the Property. The annual meeting of Unit Owners shall be held on the sixtieth (60th) day following the end of the Association's fiscal year of each and every year, if not a legal holiday, and if a legal holiday, then on the next succeeding business day not a legal holiday. At the annual meeting, the Unit Owners shall elect Directors, receive reports on the activities and financial condition of the Corporation, and transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

Section 4. Special Meetings. The Association shall hold a special meeting of its Unit Owners upon the call of the Board of Directors or the President, or upon the written demand(s) to the Secretary by Unit Owners holding at least ten (10%) percent of all votes entitled to be cast on any issue to be considered at the proposed special meeting. Any call or demand for a special meeting shall describe the purpose(s) for which the special meeting is to be held. Only business within the purpose(s) described in the meeting notice for the special meeting may be conducted at such meeting.

Section 5. Notice of Meetings. The Association shall notify its Unit Owners of the date, time and place of each annual and special meeting of Unit Owners no fewer than ten (10), nor more than forty-five (45), days before the meeting date. The notice of a meeting shall also contain such other information which may be required by these Bylaws.

Section 6. Waiver of Notice. A Unit Owner's attendance at a meeting:

(a) Waives objection to lack of notice or defective notice of the meeting unless the Unit Owner at the beginning of the meeting (or promptly upon arrival) objects to holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting; and (b) Waives objection to consideration of a particular matter at the meeting that is not within the purpose(s) described in the meeting notice, unless the Unit Owner objects to considering the matter when it is presented.

Section 7. Voting. Each Unit Owner shall have one vote. A "majority of the Unit Owners" means the owners of more than fifty percent (50%) of the voting rights of the Unit Owners.

The Developer may exercise the voting rights with respect to Units owned by Developer; however, the Developer shall transfer control of the Association once he has sold more than fifty (50%) percent of the Units.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Unit Owner who is in default in the payment of assessments hereunder shall be entitled to exercise the right to vote until the Owner has cured such default. A Unit Owner shall be deemed to be in default if such Owner has not paid his or her assessments to the Board, or their agent, within ten (10) days after the date such assessments are due. A Unit Owner may protest the amount of the assessment, but it still must be paid during the period pending the protest to the Board.

Section 8. Quorum. Unless otherwise required by law, a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by Unit Owners must be represented at any meeting of the Unit Owners to constitute a quorum on that matter. If, however, such quorum is not represented at any such meeting, the Unit Owners present at the meeting in person or represented by proxy shall have the power to adjourn from time to time without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until the requisite quorum is present or represented, when any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as provided in the original notice.

Section 9. Voting Requirements. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, action on any matter voted upon at a meeting of the Unit Owners is approved if a majority of the Unit Owners vote in favor of the action. However, Directors shall be elected by a plurality of the votes cast by the Unit Owners entitled to vote in the election at a meeting of the Unit Owners at which a quorum is present.

Section 10. Action by Written Consent. Action that is required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the Unit Owners may be taken without such a meeting if all Unit Owners entitled to vote on the action consent to taking such action without a meeting. If all of such Unit Owners so consent, the affirmative vote of the number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting shall be the act of the Unit Owners, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws. Such consent (or counterpart(s) thereof) shall describe the action taken, be in writing, be

signed by each Unit Owner entitled to vote on the action, indicate each signing Unit Owner's vote or abstention on the action, and be delivered to the Secretary of the Association and included in the minutes or Association records.

Section 11. Action by Written Ballot. Any action that may be taken at any annual or special meeting of Unit Owners may be taken without a meeting if the Association delivers a written ballot to every Unit Owner entitled to vote on the matter. The written ballot shall set forth each proposed action and shall provide an opportunity to vote for or against each proposed action. Approval by written ballot shall be valid only when the number of votes cast by ballot equals or exceeds the quorum required to be present at a meeting authorizing the action, and the number of approvals equals or exceeds the number of votes that would be required to approve the matter at a meeting at

which the total number of votes cast was the same as the number of votes cast by ballot. All solicitations for votes by written ballot shall:

- (a) Indicate the number of responses needed to meet the quorum requirements;
- (b) State the percentage of approvals necessary to approve each matter other than election of Directors; and
- (c) Specify the time by which the ballot must be received by the Association in order to be counted.

ARTICLE II

Board of Directors

Section 1. Number, Election and Term of Office. The Board of Directors of the Association shall consist of three (3) persons (hereinafter referred to as "Directors"). Directors shall be elected at the annual meeting of Association's Unit Owners by the vote of Unit Owners as hereinafter provided, except that the Developer shall appoint the interim Board of Directors ("Interim Board") until the first meeting.

Section 2. Qualification. Except for those persons making up the Interim Board, each Director shall be a Unit Owner or the spouse of a Unit Owner (or, if a Unit Owner is a trustee of a trust, a Director may be a beneficiary of such trust, and if a Unit Owner or such a beneficiary is a corporation or partnership, a Director may be an officer, partner or employee of such Unit Owner or beneficiary). If a Director shall cease to meet such qualifications during his term, such Director shall cease to be a Director and his or her place on the Board shall be deemed vacant.

Section 3. Regular Meetings. Except as otherwise provided herein, regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without notice at such time and place as the Board of Directors shall determine from time to time, but no less frequently than once a year.

Section 4. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President or by any two (2) Directors.

Section 5. Notice of Meetings. Except as otherwise provided herein, regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without notice of the date, time, place, or purpose of the meeting. Except as otherwise provided herein, special meetings of the Board of Directors must be preceded by at least two (2) days' notice to each Director of the date, time and place, but not the purpose, of such special meeting. Notice of any adjourned meeting need not be given if the time and place to which the meeting is adjourned are fixed at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken, and if the period of adjournment does not exceed one (1) month in any one (1) adjournment.

Section 6. Waiver of Notice. If a Director attends or participates in a meeting, he or she waives any required notice to him or her of the meeting unless the Director at the beginning of the meeting (or promptly upon arrival) objects to holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting and does not thereafter vote for or assent to action taken at the meeting.

Section 7. Quorum and Voting. A quorum of the Board of Directors consists of a majority (but no fewer than two (2)) of the Directors then in office before a meeting begins. If a quorum is present

when a vote is taken, the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors present is the act of the Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws.

Section 8. Vacancy. If a vacancy occurs on the Board of Directors, including a vacancy resulting from an increase in the number of Directors or a vacancy resulting from a removal of a Director with or without cause:

- (a) The Unit Owners may fill the vacancy;
- (b) The Board of Directors may fill the vacancy; or
- (c) If the Directors remaining in office constitute fewer than a quorum of the Board, they may fill the vacancy by the affirmative vote of a majority of all Directors remaining in office.

Any Director elected to fill a vacancy shall hold office for a term equal to the unexpired term of the Director succeeded.

Section 9. Removal of Directors. The Unit Owners may remove any one (1) or more Directors, with or without cause, at any special meeting that is specifically called for that purpose.

Section 10. Action Without Meeting. Action that is required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors may be taken without such a meeting if all Directors consent to taking such action without a meeting. If all Directors so consent, the affirmative vote of the number of Directors that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting shall be the act of the Board, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws. Such consent(s) shall describe the action taken, be in writing, be signed by each Director entitled to vote, indicate each signing Director's vote or abstention on the action, and be delivered to the Secretary of the Association and included in the minutes filed with the Association's records.

Section 11. Indemnification. With respect to claims or liabilities arising out of service as a Director of the Association, the Association shall indemnify and advance expenses to each present and future Director (and his or her estate, heirs, and personal representatives) to the fullest extent allowed by the laws of the State of Tennessee, both as now in effect and as hereafter adopted or amended.

Section 12. Immunity. To the fullest extent allowed by the laws of the State of Tennessee, both as now in effect and as hereafter adopted or amended, each present and future Director (and his or her estate, heirs, and personal representatives) shall be immune from suit arising from the conduct of the affairs of the Association.

Section 13. Compensation. Directors shall receive no compensation for their services as Directors, unless expressly provided for in resolutions duly adopted by the Unit Owners.

Section 14. Powers and Duties. The Board shall have the following powers and duties:

- (a) to elect and remove the officers of the Association as hereinafter provided;
- (b) to administer the affairs of the Association and the Property;
- (c) to formulate policies for the administration, management and operation of the Property;

- (d) to adopt rules and regulations, with written notice thereof to all Unit Owners, governing the administration, management, operation and use of the Property, and to amend such rules and regulations from time to time;
- (e) when necessary, to interpret the rules and regulations of the Association;
- (f) to exercise all other powers and duties of a board of administration as referred to in the Declaration of Planned Unit Development.

Section 15. Non-Delegation. Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in these Bylaws shall be considered to grant to the Board, the Association or to the officers of the Association any powers or duties which, by law, have been delegated to the Unit Owners.

ARTICLE III

Officers

- Section 1. Designation. At each regular meeting, the Directors present at said meeting shall elect the following officers of the Association by a majority vote, provided a quorum exists:
 - (a) a President, who shall be a Director and who shall preside over the meetings of the Board and of the Unit Owners, and who shall be the chief executive officer of the Association:
 - (b) a Secretary, who shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board and of the Unit Owners, and who shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Secretary, and who may be a representative of the Managing Agent;
 - (c) a Treasurer, who shall be responsible for financial records and books of account and the manner in which such records and books are kept and reported; and
 - (d) such additional officers as the Board shall see fit to elect.
- Section 2. Powers. The respective officers shall have the general powers usually vested in such officers; provided that the Board may delegate any specific powers to any other officer or impose such limitations or restrictions upon the powers of any officer as the Board may see fit.
- Section 3. Term of Office. Each officer shall hold office for the term of one (1) year and until a successor shall have been appointed or elected and qualified.
- Section 4. Vacancies. Vacancies in any office shall be filled by the Board by a majority vote of the remaining Directors at a special meeting of said Board. Any Director so elected to fill a vacancy shall hold office for a term equal to the unexpired term of the officer succeeded.
- Section 5. Compensation. The officers shall receive no compensation for their services as officers, unless expressly provided for in a resolution duly adopted by the Unit Owners.
- Section 6. Removal. The Board of Directors may remove any officer at any time with or without cause.
- Section 7. Indemnification. With respect to claims or liabilities arising out of service as an officer of the Association, the Association shall indemnify and advance expenses to each present and future

officer (and his or her estate, heirs and personal representatives) to the fullest extent allowed by the laws of the State of Tennessee, both as now in effect and as hereafter adopted or amended.

ARTICLE IV

Assessments

Section 1. Annual Budget. The Board shall cause to be prepared an estimated annual budget for each fiscal year of the Association. Such budget shall take into account the estimated common expenses and cash requirements for the year.

Section 2. Assessments. The estimated annual budget for each fiscal year shall be approved by the Board, and copies thereof shall be furnished by the Board to each Unit Owner, not later than thirty (30) days prior to the beginning of such year. On or before the first day of the first month and of each succeeding month of the year covered by the annual budget, each Unit Owner shall pay, as such Owner's respective monthly assessment for the common expenses, one-twelfth (1/12) of such Owner's proportionate share of the common expenses for such year as shown by the annual budget.

Section 3. Partial Year or Month. For the first fiscal year and thereafter until the First Board is elected, the annual budget shall be approved by the Interim Board. If such first fiscal year, or any succeeding fiscal year, shall be less than a full year, then the monthly assessments for each Unit Owner shall be proportionate to the number of months and days in such period covered by such budget. Each Unit Owner shall pay such Owner's assessment for the following month or fraction of a month, which assessment shall be in proportion to the Owner's respective ownership interest in the Common Elements and the number of months and days remaining of the period covered by the current annual budget, and which assessment shall be computed by the Board.

Section 4. Annual Report. Within ninety (90) days after the end of each fiscal year covered by an annual budget, or as soon thereafter as shall be practicable, the Board shall cause to be furnished to each Unit Owner, and to any other party required by the Master Deed, a statement for such year so ended, showing the receipts and expenditures and such other information as the Board may deem desirable.

Section 5. Lien. It shall be the duty of every Unit Owner to pay such Owner's proportionate share of the common expenses and limited common expenses, as provided in The Restrictions, Easements, Covenants, Conditions, Assessments, and Liens for Quail Creek at The Ridges, and as assessed in the manner herein provided.

If any Unit Owner shall fail or refuse to make any such payment of the common expenses or limited common expenses when due, the amount thereof, together with a ten percent (10%) late fee, together with interest thereon at the rate of eight percent (12.0%) per annum after said common expenses become due and payable, shall constitute a lien, as provided in the Act, enforceable by the Board, on the interest of such Unit Owner in the Property, provided, however, that such lien shall be subordinate to the lien of a recorded deed of trust on the interest of such Unit Owner, except for the amount of the proportionate share of common expenses and limited common expenses which are due and payable from and after the date on which such deed of trust beneficiary either takes possession of the Unit, accepts a conveyance of any interest therein (other than as security), or files suit to foreclose on its deed of trust. [The provisions of this paragraph of this Section 7 shall not be

amended, changed, modified or rescinded in any way without the prior written consent of all such lien holders of record.]

The Association or its successors and assigns, and the Board or its agents, shall have the right to enforce the lien as provided in The Restrictions, Easements, Covenants, Conditions, Assessments, and Liens for Quail Creek at The Ridges, and there shall be added to the amount due the costs of any suit maintained to enforce the lien and other fees and expenses, together with legal interest and reasonable attorneys' fees. Furthermore, if any Unit Owner shall fail or refuse to pay when due such Owner's proportionate share of the common expenses or limited common expenses and such Unit Owner withholds possession of such Owner's Unit after demand by the Board or the Association in writing setting forth the amount claimed, the Board or the Association shall have the right to possession of such Unit.

Section 6. Records and Statement of Account. The Board shall cause to be kept detailed and accurate records in a book in chronological order of the receipts and expenditures affecting the Common Elements and Limited Common Elements, specifying and itemizing the common expenses and limited common expenses incurred. Payment vouchers may be approved in such manner as the Board may determine. Said book and the vouchers shall be available for examination by all Unit Owners at convenient hours on working days which shall be set and announced for general knowledge.

The Board shall, upon receipt of ten (10) days' written notice to it or the Association and upon payment of a reasonable fee, furnish to any Unit Owner a statement of account setting forth the amount of any unpaid assessments or other charges due and owing from such Unit Owner.

Section 7. Association Records. The Association shall keep as permanent records minutes of all meetings of its Unit Owners and Board of Directors, a record of all actions taken by the Unit Owners and the Board of Directors without a meeting and all appropriate accounting records.

Section 8. Records at Principal Office. The Association shall keep at all times a copy of the following records at its principal office:

- (a) Its Charter or Restated Charter and all amendments thereto;
- (b) These Bylaws and all amendments thereto;
- (c) Resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors relating to the characteristics, qualifications, rights, limitations and obligations of Unit Owners or any class or category of Unit Owners;
- (d) The minutes of all meetings of Unit Owners and the records of all actions taken by Unit Owners without a meeting for the past three (3) years;
- (e) All written communications to Unit Owners generally within the past three (3) years, including the past three (3) years' annual financial statements;
- (f) A list of the names and business or home addresses of its current Directors and officers;
- (g) The most recent annual report delivered to the Tennessee Secretary of State; and

Section 9. Annual Financial Statements. The Association shall prepare annual financial statements that include a balance sheet as of the end of the fiscal year, an income statement for that

year, and such other information necessary to comply with the requirements of the applicable provisions of the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act.

ARTICLE V

Contractual Powers

No contract or other transaction between the Association and one or more of its Directors or between the Association and any corporation, firm or association in which one or more of the Directors of the Association are directors, or are financially interested, is void or voidable because such Director or Directors are present at the meeting of the Board or a committee thereof which authorizes or approves the contract or transaction or because his or their votes are counted, if the circumstances specified in either of the following subparagraphs exists:

- (a) the fact of the common directorship or financial interest is disclosed or known to the Board or committee and noted in the minutes and the Board or committee authorizes, approves or ratifies the contract or transaction in good faith by a vote sufficient for the purpose without counting the vote or votes of such Director or Directors; or
- (b) the contract or transaction is just and reasonable as to the corporation at the time it is authorized or approved.

Common or interested Directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the Board or a committee thereof which authorizes, approves or ratifies a contract or transaction.

ARTICLE VI

Amendments

These Bylaws may be amended or modified from time to time by action or approval of two-thirds (2/3) of the Unit Owners casting one (1) vote for each Unit owned, as provided in Article I, Section 7 of these Bylaws. Such amendment(s) shall not be operative until they are recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds for Washington County, Tennessee. These By-Laws may not be amended by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VII

Definition of Terms

The terms used in these Bylaws, to the extent they are defined herein, shall have the same definition as set forth in The Restrictions, Easements, Covenants, Conditions, Assessments, and Liens for Quail Creek at The Ridges as such may be amended from time to time.

The term "member," as used in these Bylaws, generally means "Unit Owner" as defined in The Restrictions, Easements, Covenants, Conditions, Assessments, and Liens for Quail Creek at The Ridges. "Deed of trust," as used herein, includes a mortgage; and "deed of trust beneficiary" includes a mortgagee and a holder of a deed of trust.

ARTICLE VIII

Miscellaneous Provisions

Section 1. No Seal. The Association shall have no seal.

Section 2. Notices. Whenever notice is required to be given to Unit Owners, Directors or officers, unless otherwise provided by law, The Restrictions, Easements, Covenants, Conditions, Assessments, and Liens for Quail Creek at The Ridges, the Charter or these Bylaws, such notice may be given in person or by telephone, telegraph, mail or private carrier. If such notice is given by mail, it shall be sent postage prepaid by first class United States mail or by registered or certified United States mail, return receipt requested, and addressed to the respective address which appears for each such person on the books of the Corporation. Written notice sent by mail to Unit Owners shall be deemed to have been given when it is mailed. Any other written notice shall be deemed to have been given at the earliest of the following:

- (a) When received;
- (b) Five (5) days after its deposit in the United States mail if sent first class, postage prepaid; or
- (c) On the date on the return receipt, if sent by registered or certified United States mail, return receipt requested, and the receipt is signed by or on behalf of the addressee.

The undersigned hereby certifies that the foregoing Rylaws were duly ad-

Quail Creek At The Ridges Homeowners' As	foregoing Bylaws were duly adopted as the Bylaws of ssociation. Inc.
DATED the day of	
	Quail Creek At The Ridges Homeowners' Association, Inc.
	Ву:
satisfactory evidence), and who, upon oath, acl within named bargainor, a Tennessee nong	ate and county aforementioned, personally appeared nally acquainted (or proved to me on the basis of knowledged such person to be of the profit corporation, and that such person, as such
signing the name of the corporation by such p	no instrument for the number them:
Witness my hand and seal, thisd	
My Commission Expires:	Notary Public